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e Colonial/Native heritage trail

e North Acton Conservation

e 2 Mile loop


Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Trail Through Time project is an offspring of the Stone Chamber restoration project. As that project neared completion it became evident there were numerous features along Nashoba Brook that spoke to how the land was used by both Colonialists and Native Americans. As a unique bi-cultural heritage trail the 2 mile loop encompasses the east and west banks of Nashoba Brook on the North Acton Conservation Land. The project has been funded in three phases by the Community Preservation Act. Without the support of the Conservation Commission, the Board of Selectmen, the Community Preservation Committee, the Natural Resources Department and Linda McElroy the project might not have met the success that it has.
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Prehistoric to Industrial era American heritage sites

Thns stone chamber with the adjacent stone enclosure comprise one
of a group of sites that may be visited along the Trail Through Time,
a heritage trail through North Acton conservation lands. Here can

be seen remains of early Anglo-European buildings side-by-side with
stone structures. lying along an ancient swath of landscape sacred

to Native Americans. For thousands of years, early people used this
ritual landscape to sustain their reliance on Mother Earth and the spirit
energies of balance and harmony.

This chamber is similar to many. structures that once stood throughout
the Northeastern woodlands. Of unusual L-shaped design, with a 17-ft
passage leading to a 6-ft square room, this structure is of modified
post and lintel construction. The pillar at the junction of the passage
and room is a unique feature. Eight large, overlapping rock slabs form
the roof, which is mounded over with earth,
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Nashoba Brook stone chamber prior to reconstruction

A single stene tool excavated at the site—characteristic of the Meville
culture extant in the region 8,000 years ago—is inconclusive for
prehistoric use because of the disturbed soil in which it was found.

Detailed information on this site and others on the Trail Through Time
can be found at: http://trailthroughtime.info/
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Masnnry evidence hints that the chamber room, built in a large cavity
dug into the natural drumlin formation, may have been constructed in
pre-Colonial times. However, historic documents record that Moses
Wood, a Revolutionary War veteran and blacksmith, established a
farmstead at this site in 1774, The archaeological. evidence indicates
that the chamber and adjacent foundation were used concurrently and
for a related purpose. The many hand-wrought nails found in the soils
of the enclosure strengthen the case for a foundry at the site.

An inventory of assets compiled at
the death of Samuel Tuttle, a later
owner of the site, lists income
from ‘rent of ice-house,” implying
that the chamber was used to
store ice cut from Nashoba Brook.
Other uses include storage of farm
. products such as meat, oot crops,
y ﬂ 1 .| apples, and cider.

ol L S|

Phioto, Mo Towle hidiett

Stone chamber during reconstruction

The evidence, gathered by different research specialties, makes clear
that the chamber was built and rebuilt to accommodate the changing
needs ‘of current owners.

Restoration of the chamber's collapsing walls was made possible by
collaborative funding from the Acton Community Preservation Committee
and the New England Antiquities Research Association. This restoration
was the first in the state to adhere to Massachusetts Historical
Commission regulations and US. Secretary of Interior standards,

The Acton Land Stewards and friends provided volunteer labor.

e Moses Wood Farmstead (1774)

Chamber Dimensions

 Archaeological Survey


Presenter
Presentation Notes
This presentation will review the existing sites on both the west and east banks of the Nashoba River; the sites currently in preparation and the future sites anticipated. Starting with the first project, the Stone Chamber we will progress through all the features that have been addressed thus far. The earliest we have tracked the Stone Chamber is back to the 1776 farmstead of Moses Wood, a Revolutionary War veteran. An archaeology survey completed by Craig Cartier found no evidence of native American provenance. As shown in the top picture the Stone Chamber is an interesting structure made from large flat stone slabs supported by a stone foundation. A 17’ entrance tunnel leads to a 6’ x 6’ room, with enough height for most people to be able to stand. Trail Through Time’s first educational panel was placed just down gradient from the entrance to the chamber.
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Acton Chamber

04T 2008 nof fo seala
David Stewart- Smith, master masom

® Smithy known in area

e Moses Wood was a smith

e Same builder for both
structures

e Animal Pen?
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
The blacksmith shop is just to the northeast of the stone chamber. Documentary research indicates that the chamber may have been used as an ice house and the adjacent foundation served as the blacksmith shop for Moses Wood, a known smith, and his son Aaron. Both the square blacksmith foundation and the chamber were reconstructed by Master Mason David Stewart-Smith. Another possible use for the square enclosure is as an animal pen. The masonry signature strongly suggests that the tunnel and the shop were built by the same builder
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B etoreyoit s the foundationof:an sarly. 1730s dwelling house: bt by
Thomas Wheeler, Jr., of Concord Towne to the southeast. The purpose

of the settlement that devaloped here was tha operation of two mills—
one a grist and the other a sawmill—on this upper portion of the Nashoba
Brook, just below a pre-existing dam. The dam, shown on an early map

as the ‘Blocd Dam’ and located just above the mill complex, was earlier
ownad by the Blood family of Thomas Whesler's maternal grandmother:

Thomas Wheelar. Jr. had the mill complex fully operational by 1732. The location
is most suitable for mills. Here, the natural topography of the streambed, with
its gently up-sloping wooded banks, favored the construction of a canal along
the northerly stream bank, configured to supply water to the downstream
sluices and gates, with a height of fall sufficient to power two mills.

The larga flat stone in front of this foundation marks the entrance to
the dwalling house which rested on this original cellar. This masonry
was restored in 2008, During that process, under nearly a foot of debris,
a floor, composed of large, flat stone slabs neatly fitted together,

was discovered. Such a paved cellar was extremely unusual for the
period, and may have been used for storage of farm products.

Archaeological avidenca from the TTT 2008 Field School suggests that
the foundation was renovated c. 1830, at which time stone from local
quarries was introduced, the paving stones were set, and granite sills were
added. The frame house was moved in the 19th century and demolished
in the 20th, leaving the stone foundation largely intact. The staircase
replicatas one that likely filled the recess built into the west wall.

Extending from the west wall is a low-walled surface enclosure. No records have
been found to show whether a vicoden structure, or of what type, wias supported
by this foundation. However, its close proximity to the well at tha foot of the large
sugar maple suggests that a kitchen shad/creamery was located hare. The well,
deep and still containing water, provided potable water to the settlement. The
well cover was ciit from one piece of granite from the Morth Acton Quarry.

Attached to this first enclosure is'a second, with three sides, which may have
supplied culinary and medicinal herbs, as was common during this era.

The double-walled stone droving corridor to the west was used to move
cattle between pens and pasture. An opening toward its end on its northerly
side was likely fitted with a gate into the pasture area. The corridor’s
southerly wall continues along the edge of the Brook for some distance.

Oxen for Labor

Aucurdlng to early Town Records of Acton, after the farmstead’s establishment,
the track within the droving corridor became the Main Street” connecting it with
a settlement further downstream. It overlaid a trail used from even earlier times
by Native Americans who harvested fish and other resources from the Brook
and its rich Later, when additi ds and barns wera
built in the area, "Main Street’ was moved north to where itis located today.

The farmstead, with its associated droving corridor and cattle pens, would have
supported the construction, and later the operation, of the mills. All of the extensive
stonework you see around you was built by the labor of men with oxen. Later,

the oxen were used to mave raw materials and products to and from the mills.

As you wander along the droving corridor, you will see to your left—
towards the Brook—two stone walls, each perpendicular to the corridor,
that lead towards the flood plain. They form a three-sided enclosure
now equipped with a handicapped acceszible picnic table and a bench
which locks out on a wida vista across wetlands towards the Brook

At one corner of this enclosure,
look for a carefully laid-up, flat-
sided stone wall that joins the
droving corridor at a wide angle.
This wall is the butt end of a
loading ramp, a structure often
seen throughout the rural areas
of New England. Such ramps
were used to haul wagons loaded
with hay, or other supplies, to.
the upper stories, or lofts, of
Ray ~iull|  barns. The presence of this ramp
S e 4 2 P 4] suggests that a two-story barn
Foundation of Wheeler Farmstead before rested adjacent to the end of
2008 restoration. the ramp. The area within the
enclosure was likely the place
where various activities associated with the loading, storage, and
offloading of fodder for animals and other supplies was carried out.

Historical documents indicate that there were eventually built several barns
and outbuildings associated with this farmstead. However, the only extant
remains of possible barns have been incorporated inta a retaining wall along
the driveway of the nearest house on the west side of Wheeler Lane.

Retracing the pathway back towards the front of the homestead,
you will find a stone-dust path leading east towards the mill complex, where the
remains of raceways, sluices, gates, and other building foundations are located.

Photo: Davd Stewart Smth, master mason
Detaed information about this site and others o1 the Trad Theough Tima may be found at

o g
‘suppbed by a vole of Town Moet ct funds.
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1728 Foundation

 Droving corridor, well, stone
floor, animal pens



Presenter
Presentation Notes
At the end of Wheeler Lane a parking area has been provided just adjacent to a stone foundation. Research shows that Thomas Wheeler Jr of Concord built the foundation in 1728. The foundation has an unusual feature in that it has a stone faced floor which wasn’t common and indicates the basement may have been used for storage of grain from the adjacent mill site. Archaeological evidence suggests that the foundation was renovated in 1830’s at which time stone from local quarries was introduced. As was the case in the Stone Chamber and Blacksmith shop the foundation was restored by David Stewart-Smith. As part of that project a staircase was built to replicate one that likely filled the recess in the west wall. Other features include a low-walled surface enclosure adjacent to a well suggestive of a kitchen shed/creamery; a second enclosure which may have supplied culinary and medicinal herbs and a droving corridor which was a former native American trail and  likely the main street connecting it with settlements downstream.   



-

rl_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_

rl_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l

\ __/Trail Through Time

_)I'rail Through Time

BB atore yoilar the veniain of thé rior herty tennins of the Old Rodd o

and from Concord. These remnants. on the southern bank of Nashoba Brook,
provide evidence of a formerly busy way in steady use during the 1730s between
Thomas Wheeler, Jr's grist and sawmills, and Concord Towne. This road ran
directly to the present Pope Road, and today it can be followed from above

this slope as far as Triangle Farm, where evidence of the old road ends.

The following entry appears in the Concord Town Recards,
Old Volume lI=Folic 107, on 20 February 1733:

At the desire of Thomas Wheeler. the Selectmen did then lay out a way
from said Wheeler’s mill to let him in to the Country Roud....to run over
the Brook a few rods below his mill to the upland on the easterly [sic)
side of the Brook till it comes to a white ook on the side of the hill

In return for the allowance of this road, Thomas Wheeler:

..promised to make the causeway on the westerly [sic] side of the above said
Brook. and also a good and sufficient Bridge over It at his own Cost and Charge

This public way was accepted on the 11th of March 1733 at a "General Town
Meating of the Notabla Inhabitants of Concord” On February 20, 1734, the
Concord Selectmen laid out a road to Thomas Wheeler's grist mill and his
nearby dwelling house, accerding to Concord Town Reports. This recorded
road is misinterpreted in Phalen’s History of Acton to be the present Strawberry
Hill Road. However, archaeological evidence, established by the TTT 2008

Field School, supports that these road-remains are, in fact, those of the road,
referenced above, which led to the TTT's Wheeler Farm and Mill site.

Roads were the lifeblood of commerce and society in Colonial America.
They were designed by first conducting a land survey and then petitioning
the Town to grant a Right of Way. These engineered roads were intended to
open isolated areas to commerce and provide links to markets. Typically,
they were constructed by clearing a road bed using oxen, then laying a sub-
structure, followed by a dirt surface, and finally bounded with stone walls.

All plans for such town roads showed dimensions for crews to use in the field.
The surveyors would set out the marks for the Right of Way. In this case;

..four rods wide from the low land by the Brook till it come to
the fourth mark...and from then on two rods wide. .

l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l1
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In the 18th century, to set a measurement, a chain with 100 links was used
to measure a 4-rod distance (equal roughly to 66 feet, or 20 meters) between
two posts.

Just beyond the bridge, the old track narrows to a constant 10-meter width as

it ascends the southerly bank of the Brook. The track close to the Brook shows.
major erosion damage, although, as the land levels out at the top of the ridge, the
stone walls are readily discernible, and the road bed is still in good condition. The.
walls are of local rubble in 2 or 3 courses, depending on their size and shape.

Remans of large rubble prer on south bank
to support heavy 0ads.

The remains of the piers which supported the bridge are visible under the
modarn footbridge. Thay ara of rubble construction also and were ample
to support the heavy load of oxen, cart, and corn—or other materials—
which would have traveled to the mill daily during the harvest season.

Please do not attempt to climb this portion of the anclent
roadbed, as that would cause further erosion.

Phioto: Kimberley Connors Hughes, archeologist

Detiied information about this site and others. oa the Trad Theough Time may ba found at
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Wheeler built extensive
causeway


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Located at the footbridge over Nashoba brook to the southeast of the Wheeler Farmstead is the terminus of the Old Road to and from Concord. The footbridge was built on the remnants of a large rubble pier placed there for the original crossing. The road leads directly to Pope Road and can be followed as far as Triangle Farm on Pope Road. In 1733 Thomas Wheeler petitioned the Concord Selectmen to lay out the way. He was required to build a causeway, which is still apparent, across the flood plain in order to narrow the channel of water; making it easier to bridge. Just beyond the bridge the old track narrows to a constant 10 meter width as it ascends the southerly bank of the Brook.
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The small cluster of stone piles around you is representative
of the usual density of such features scattered along this
southerly flank of the Nashoba Brook. Look for two clusters
a short distance southwest of this site where the density of
stone piles is unusually large. Each is marked with a panel.

Stone pile groupings such as these, known In Algonquian
as Kdhtdquwuk, were often created by Native Americans
to memorialize an important event, death, or person. In
other circumstances, stone piles, earthen mounds, or
stone rows vere construcled as part of an astronomical/
plex to blish sight-lines to mark significant
aslranom:cal events such as the solstice sunrise or set.

To an area as cer important, another type
of stone feature, called Sun catcapinumut in Algonquian, is
occasionally seen, often far from modern trails. Such a feature,
originally, was a single boulder with a fault ine, deposited by the
receding glacier, Over eons of freezing and thawing, this boulder
might be broken apart at the fault line. Such split boulders are
recognizable by the matching faces at the resulting cleft.

Evidence that such a pair was selected by Native Americans to
designate an important ceremonial site lies in the presence of
one or more small rocks placed into the cleft. Such rocks may
be of different material and color from the host boulder/pair.
The smaller rocks may be angular or rounded. See photograph
to right. Look for such an enhanced stone pair within the
Princess Pine enclosure a quarter mile to the southwest.

Blueberry Vaccinium Corymbosum
Blueberries, along with other berries,
significant food resource for Natve Ameucan:
in New England. Large areas where the bushes.
ared of trees, and the bushes
were bumed annually to promote a good crop
In allocating lands to famalies of his band, the
sachem allotted berry patches as well as crop
fields, and hunting and fishing ar

grew well we

rAS.
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Sun catcaprmumut

The presence of stone piles and other stone features throughout
these woodlands demonstrates the Native Americans’ belief that
the natural world is imbued with a spiritual quality Such
strucr.ures exemplify the Indian practice, here in the Northeast
and vhera in North America, of subtly enhancing naturally
occurring features of the landscape rather than building large,
prominent structures that intrude upon that natural landscape.

Text and photo: Linda McEloy, Director, Trail Theough Tienes

Designe Process. "
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Detailed information aboul this site and others on tha Trail Theough :

Time may be found at: hitp.//ttt connactiaty.com. Funding for this

pimcl was suppbed by a vole of Town Mesting authorung use of (O]
Commimity, Preservation Act funds. i

Half dozen stone piles

Created by Native Americans to
commemorate special events

Natural World-Spiritual Quality

Blueberries


Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Blueberry stone pile cluster has a half dozen stone piles scattered adjacent to the yellow trail. Stone pile groupings such as these were often created by Native Americans to memorialize important events. The presence of stone piles and other stone features can serve to demonstrate the Native American’s belief that the natural world is imbued with a spiritual quality. In keeping with Native American values the site was named after the prevalence of blueberries in the area, a significant food resource for Native Americans. This site is located about 1/8 of a mile south of the Old Road to Concord.


1750-1801

Amxher archaeological feature at this site is a stone foundation set partially into
the slope below the ridge a short distance uphill from this stone pile cluster. Bricks

Biiorayotits one of saveral somm pila
clusters located throughout this portion
of the Nashoba Brook Consarvation Land

S— have been found in close proximity, and the masonry technique is European. A
s \ and its adjacent neighbor parcel, Spring tiny flowage of seasonal water is close by. To reach the site, follow the short path,
v \ Hill Conservation Land. The Massachuselts signed with green arrows, starting at the back of the cluster near the stone wall
\ = Historical Commission states, on the State - . .
\; website, that all stone piles are the product This foundation is not shown or mentioned in any deeds and maps of

the town; however, this portion of the Nashoba Brook Conservation Land
was owned by Dr. Jonathan Davies of Roxbury from 1750 to 1801. He
was the brother of Capt. Davies of nearby Bellows Farm. Town records
indicate that Dr. Davies was paid for medical services by the town:

of past agricultural or field-clearing activities
undertaken by early European-descended
farmers to provide pasturage for domestic
animals or agricultural fields for food crops
Aprilye 2, 1755: ..at the Same time an order to Copt Davies for fourteen
Shilling for time Spent in the towns Service the year past and Likewise
the Sum of Six Shilling which was Due to Dr. Davies for taking Care

of Abigail Russel when She was Sick the whole of his Demands...

Modern Native Americans from Federally
recognized regional tribes, however, tell us that
stone piles such as these are ancestral tribal
stone groupings with cersmonial significance
for their people even to this day. Native
American beliefs give spiritual si to.  Plotsh of pilés in the
all natural objects. Constructed originally to Plantain Cluster, drawn ta scale
commemorate significant tribal or personal

events, such clusters are considered sacred places. Please do not touch or move
any of thesa stones. To do so would destroy their sacred value to Native Americans.

One interesting fact is the isolation of this foundation on the Davies parcel. As the.
land was owned for over 50 years by Dr. Davies, it is possible that a building on this
foundation served as a sick house, or what was commonly called a ‘pest house, for
the Davies family or other community members. There were no hospitals in the 18th
century, and doctors, or communities, often set up pest houses to keep infectious
diseases under control.

Some who are now studying stane piles in this

Elﬂaw?)'_ Rattlesnake | ropion have found that fleld-clearing piles:
ntain
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« are irregularly shaped and consist
«of stones of many sizes;

* or, consist of similarly-sized stones with large
stones and small stones piled separately;

» have over time assumed the
natural ‘angle of repose’;

= have the appearance of a dumped
group of stones; and
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Look carefully between some of :
thin the (possi House
the pies. and you wall find the » are set next to a field. against a stone. Cinneroasesalin thelpossiok Uavles s
low-groming evergreen plant. wall, or spill over an embankment.
amember of the orchid famity The plan of this structure, with a huge chimney in the middle separating
e G e In contrast to these characteristics, observe two 'rooms, would have provided for two hearths for warmth and separate
antain, Goodyera pubescens. e ! " ¢
AL A aficans .:-u this semi- | that the piles in this cluster do not conform spaces for the patient and caretaker with less danger of contagion.
rare wild plant as an antidote for to these specifications. Additionally, notice
snake bite and as a tea for the that the area around this cluster and
relief of toothache, colds, kidney | throughout these woodlands generall
disease, and eye problems. s nﬂm haenasrador smnss_._ ¥ Photo and gnd map of cluster: Kimberiey Connors Hughes, archaeclognt

Detasied information about this site and oihers on the Tra Thiough Timo may bo found al
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* A baker’s dozen stone piles
* [ndian piles vs field clearing piles

e Same size vs many sizes
e Shape constructed vs angle of repose

e Groupings in open area vs next to wall or
embankment

* Downy Rattlesnake Plantain


Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Plantain stone pile cluster consists of 13 piles densely placed just off the yellow trail approximately 1/3 of a mile south of the Old Road to Concord. Some who are now studying stone piles in this region have found that field-clearing piles can be irregularly shaped, consisting of many sizes; or similarly-sized stones with large and small stones piled separately; have over time assumed the natural angle of repose; have the appearance of a dumped group of stones; are set next to a field, against a stone wall or spill over an embankment. These stone piles do not display such features , having a constructed appearance made of similarly sized stones and offer a triangle shaped base. The Downy Rattlesnake Plantain, a rare medicinal, grows at this site.
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e 100 Yards Upslope

 Unusual Shaped Foundation

e Two Rooms/Huge Chimney


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Another archaeological feature 100 yards up slope from the Plantain Stone Pile Cluster is a stone foundation set partially into the slope below the ridge. The foundation is not mentioned in any deeds or maps but the parcel was owned by Dr. Jonathan Davis from 1750 to 1801. Dr. Davis was paid by the town for medical services and its interesting that this foundation is isolated from other buildings on the parcel. A possible explanation is the building on the foundation might have served as a “sick” or “pest” house for treatment of people with infectious diseases. Mention of a “pest” house occurs in the Acton Archives of Town Council meetings of this period. This foundation may be it. The plan of this structure, with an unusual shaped foundation, likely had a huge central chimney separating two rooms. This setup would provide two hearths for warmth and separate spaces for patient and caretaker with less danger of contagion. 


Native American Historical/Astronomical
rail Through Time

e The Nashoba
e King Philip’s War
e Manitou stones

 Narragansett Tribal
Preservation Office


Presenter
Presentation Notes
When the English first settled in this region, the Native Americans living here were known as the Nashoba. The name means 'land between the waters', a reference to the many ponds, wetlands, and streams that abound in the area. The Nashoba Indians were a small band loosely affiliated with the regional Nipmuck tribe, which occupied an inland area of eastern Massachusetts south of the New Hampshire Pennacook. King Phillip's War, fought in eastern Massachusetts between 1675 and 1676, was a general Indian uprising against the English settlers, whom the Indians saw as haughty, arrogant, self serving, and materialistic. Encroachments by English farmers onto Indian lands and occasional killings on both sides set the war in motion. King Philip (Metacomet ) was the second son of Massasoit. He organized and led the Indian uprising, which ended with his death and the general defeat and final subjugation of the Indians of eastern Massachusetts.
The stone features of the North Acton conservation preserve include clusters of stone piles, stone rows with astronomical alignments, standing stones, Manitou stones, stone-lined pools, stone walled enclosures, stone embrasures, a stone chamber perhaps of Indian origin, stone turtle and serpent effigies, grinding stones, springs with small streams, a prominent glacial boulder field, paired stones, and other curiosities. Many are subtle, and others are partially covered with the accumulated woodland debris of time. Several local independent researchers have shared information with the Narragansett Tribal Preservation Office representatives for interpretation. Much of the information presented on this kiosk and the several stand-alone informational panels along this portion of the TTT has been vetted through that Office.
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* Tribal

e Territories
e Diet



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Native Americans lived as tribes based on kinship. Each tribe was headed by a chieftain or sachem, who occasionally was a woman. Tribal leadership was usually hereditary through the mother’s line. Each tribe’s territories – for fishing, hunting, berry picking, nut gathering, crop fields, etc. – were defined by a river drainage system or other topographical feature. The lands were held in common although the chief would a lot to each family their area to grow crops, fish or hunt. According to white settlers this areas Native Americans ate a well balanced diet. Their small settlements were near their crop fields where they would grow corn, beans and squash, as well as, pumpkins and melons. By clearing trees they maintained berry patches. They maintained grassy areas to attract deer and built fish wiers on streams like the Nashoba brook. 
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Algonquian speaking people are one of the oldest recognized ethnic groups across the United States including this area. They shared cultural, as well as, linguistic traits. Their stone or earthen structures bear striking resemblances. They built an expression of their traditional beliefs in stone; balancing and bonding with the spirits of the Earth, Sky and Underworld. The concept of a primary creator may be a million years old. In the Northeast, it was called Kichtan, meaning Great Spirit. Their belief system impelled them to maintain reverence for all living things. Burial customs varied widely. A body could be placed with the head facing southwest; others have been found in a fetal position. Some group burials were arranged like spokes of a wheel. Cremations were common and reburials might be bundled. 
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Moast of the stene piles at this site are arranged linearly across tha wooded
slope before you. Some piles have been constructed on the ground, but many
have baen arranged on tap of glacial erratic boulders. This construction style
is unusual for the piles scattered throughout these conservation lands, but so
also is the location, on sloping terrain which levels out into a boggy area. In
addition to the two dozen piles in the linear cluster, a few piles are scattered
within the upper portion of the stone wall enclosure that surrounds the site.

——

)

This stone enclosure (Qusuqaniyuték in Algonquian) is also unusual. It is
«comprisad of one straight stone row, parpendicular to the gradient of the
slope, and a second, curving stona row which connects with the first at its
highest elevation, The curving row wraps around the east side of the slope,
separating it from an extensive glacial boulder fan beyond. The lower end
of the curved row maats the flowage at the bottom of the slops. This large
stone structure is open along the flowage. See the figure for an outline.

The straight stone row, on the south side of the slope; aligns with the sun's
summer solstice rise and winter solstice set. An ‘embrasure’ (Shwiwdhkuwi),
a purposely constructed bulge in the axis of this row, would have served
as an observation post for an astronomical event or other distant

feature. See the photo. At the lower end of this row, notice the marker.
stone (Sunish nipdmu) Also look for the enhanced split boulder pair (Sun
catcapinumut) within the enclosure, that marks this site as important.

The seep, or spring. at the slope’s bottom also suggests that this site wias of
ceremonial significance to tribal people. Fresh water, either as a seep, a small
natural pool, or a small flowage, was almost atways present at Native American
ritual sites. To them, all nature was sacred. and the Earth was regarded as their
mother. Springs and other natural sources of water were the placas where the spirit
«of the Earth amerged. The presance of several distinctive natural elements within'a

; localized area would have
Princess Pine s
e
%

enhanced its suitability
Lycopedium cbscurum
Princess Pine, also known
as Ground Pine, is nalive:
to northeastern North
Anerica. Related to the
club mosses, wis a low
groming evergreen grovnd
cover used by Nati
Ay
stiffness in the

as a sacred center.

In 1989, Mavor and Dix
published Manitou, a
seminal and comprehensive
discussion of their research

into Native American

ceremonial sites in New
England, They concluded

e Seep or Spring

rl_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l_l

that many of the stone structures which New Englanders refer to as ‘stone walls'
were not built by English settlers as walls, but by Native Americans as markers

of ceremonial/astronomical function. The authors suggested such structures be
termed ‘stone rows’ (also O« )

New England woodlands are crisscrossed with these structures. Many were,
without doubt, built by settlers as property markers or agricultural field enclosures.
However. many others of these ‘rows’ have no obvious purpose, at least to a
Western mind. They may just begin and end without intersecting other rows.
Some cross swampland. Many are dead straight; others are slightly sinuous.

In addition to the solstices, other astronomical events commonly marked
with stones and natural topography at Indian sites throughout the U.S. are
the equinactial sunrises and sets, the rising or setting of significant stars or
constellations, such as the Pleiades, and the August-12 set {or 13th rise) of
the sun. The significance of this date to northeastern Native Americans is
fist known, but it marks the beginning of the August Perseid meteor shower
and, in Maya cosmology, was the date of Creation of the current world
cycle. Local Indians hold a weeklong festival at this time each year.

tor, TIT; Enclosure form: Tan Fobl; Designe: Process.

imation, about this site and others on the Trad Through Timo may be foand at
Fitp.// 1 connactoity com. Funda; for this. panel was: suppled by a vole'of Town Meeling
authorring usa of Communty Presérvation Azt fund:

e Linearly arranged
e Summer and Winter solstice
e Observation Post
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
Most of the stone piles at the Princess Pine site are arranged linearly. Some have been constructed on ground; others on glacial erratic boulders. In comparison to the other sites this is unusual but the site is also different with a slope leveling to a boggy area. A stone enclosure surrounds the site. It is comprised of one straight stone row; perpendicular to the slope and a second curving row connecting to the first at its highest elevation. The straight stone row aligns with the sun’s summer and winter solstice set. A purposely constructed bulge at the axis would have served as an observation post. The seep or spring at the slope’s bottom suggests that this site was of ceremonial significance; a fresh water source for possible rituals.
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Th;s outerop of jagged vertical boulders may be the source of
the rock slabs that form the roof of the Nashoba Brook Stone:
Chamber, located a half mile downstream from this site.

During the restoration of that chamber in 2004, the masons advised us
to look for possible sources for the roof slabs. There are seven of these,
rectangular stabs of various sizes. They have not been shaped with metal
tools. and their size implies a nearby source. Three slabs exposed during
the restoration showed signs of weathering. Together, these features
suggested an outcrop of layered, or sadimentary, rock as.a source.

The chamber’s walls ars laid up with field stones generously supplied
from the nearby ground and streambed. But there is no obvious source
for slabs of rock the size of the roof slabs near the chamber site.

Roundad boulders would not have served for th roof: irregular bulges would have
prevented ovarlapping them so that rain water and snow malt would drain away.
Also, wide slabs were neaded to span the walls of both the corridor and the interior
room. The chamber’s roof. in fact. has perfect drainage and spans pre-built walls

The Colonists quarried stene. So did Native Americans using a passive technique:
water poured into naturally occurring cracks in ledges would alternately freeze and
thaw, forcing the cracks apart. Wooden wedges placed into the widening cracks
eventually broke off smaller pieces. However, this technique is unlikely to have
produced large slabs with rectangular shapes and the observed weathering.

During the chambaer reconstruction, many volunteers assisted; among these was
a physician/amateur geologist who commentad, as our masons had already told
us, that the stone in the roof slabs did not match the granite in the large quarry
located naarby in the Acten Town Forest along Quarry Road in North Actan

Later. some restoration project participants stumbled upon the rocky outcrop
of vartical slabs before you. Some of the original ‘teeth’ are missing; others lie
on the ground where thay fell, sroded loose by wind and watsr. Our physician/
geologist confirmed that the stone in the outcrop matches that in the roof slabs,

2 1000 500 AD 500 1600, 775, 2000

Thu straight-line distance from this site to the chamber is short, and both
sitas are close to the Nashoba Brook. It is reasonable to assume this small
outcrop could have provided the roof slabs. Even such large stones could
have been maved on log rollers to the Brook’s marshland, and from there,
during the winter, moved the remaining distance over the ice to the chamber.
site. Builders sophisticated encugh to have raised such slabs and set them
onto previously constructed stone walls, without knocking those down,
surely would have had the expertise to move the slabs in wintertime.

It can never be known whathar this outcrop is tha source of the chamber’s roof
slabs. Ideas presented here are educated guesses: no historical documents have
been found that attest who the original chamber builders were, or when they did
their building. But tha obsarved facts are consistent with a scenario that could have
been carried out by Colonial farmers with oxen, or by Native Americans without:
That scenario demonstrates the ingenuity that governed extracrdinary building
feats carried out just a few centuries ago without the technologies available today.

Chamber Plan Grawing. Batt Potersen, NEARA. Test Linda Mefiroy, TIT Project Director
Design. Procesa
Detaded information about ths sde and oibers on the Trai Through Time may be found at
it/ /it contactiiycom. FunmSiog, for 1hia, pancl was Supplicd by vola of Town Mesting
authorizmg wse of Commndy Proservairon Act fonds
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 Unusual Outcrop

e Similar Composition

* Transport Down River?


Presenter
Presentation Notes
This outcrop of jagged vertical boulders may be the source of rock slabs that form the roof of the stone chamber. The seven rectangular slabs at the chamber are irregular in size, show no evidence of shaping with metal tools and by their size imply a nearby source. Three of the stones showed signs of weathering. These features suggested an outcrop of sedimentary rock as a source. During the chamber restoration project volunteers stumbled upon this rocky outcrop of vertical slabs. Some of the original teeth are missing, others lie on the ground where they fell. The stone in this outcrop matches that in the roof slabs. Such large stones could have been moved on log rollers to the brook’s marshland. During the winter the remaining journey could have been completed over ice. No historical documents have been found that attest to who the original chamber builders were but their presence speaks to the builder’s ingenuity in using local sources and building feats without the advantage of today’s technology. 
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Presenter
Presentation Notes
In front of the Wheeler Lane parking lot there is a restored stone foundation of an early 18th century farmstead, with adjacent mill complex to the northeast. The farmstead was in full operation in 1732 by Thomas Wheeler Jr. The original dam near this site was likely built by the Blood family between 1722 and 1730. Wheeler re-built his dam over that original construction. The purpose of the settlement seems to have been to operate a grist mill and a saw mill. The location is most suitable for developing a mill complex. The natural topography of the streambed and its gently up-sloping stream banks made it possible to configure a canal to supply water sluices and gates built slightly downstream such that a height of fall was sufficient to power two mills.
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e Stone lined ditch and berm canal
e Masonry gate at lower end

 Two sluiceways brought water to
wheels

e Tub Wheel enclosure has been located
e Grist mill foundation behind tub wheel

e Vertical housing at 10’ drop


Presenter
Presentation Notes
From the dam to the mill location a stone lined ditch and earthern berm were built. A masonry gate was put in place at the lower end of the stone lined ditch. The existing stone work indicates that two sluiceways were in place to support the two different mills. A tub wheel enclosure has been found at the site with a grist mill foundation just behind it. The vertical drop over the contiguous bedrock provides the 10’ drop needed to turn the wheel.


Pipsissewa Stone Pile Site
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20 plus stone piles

Originates in natural embedded
boulder field

Bedrock outcrop/sharp right angles

Evidence of wedge gouges


Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Pipsissewa site may show cultural overlap in it’s usage. There are 2 to 3 dozen stones scattered randomly over a fairly level 2-3 acre area. Additionally, there are several stone walls of Native American style that don’t seem to have a function. Two of these walls, parallel to each other, are perpendicular to the horizon point where the Pleides rise on August 13th. Near the central focus of a significant area of naturally embedded boulders is a medium sized outcrop where two flat vertical faces are perpendicular to eachother. These faces were created by the removal of large stone slabs. The quarrying was done either with a metal chisel or wooden stakes. Native Americans did quarry stone with such tools in the early Colonial era but don’t seem to have had a use for slabs of such size. Metal chisels were much desired by Native Americans. There is no evidence of the ‘plug and feather’ technique of quarrying used by Colonists in the earliest years.
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* Trail routes

e Panel Infill
e Robbin’s Mill Dam
e Observation Platform


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Dam had two gates; one to regulate the height of the water in the pond; one to allow water into the canal both to allow flow through mill races to turn wheels and in case of the saw mill to allow logs collected in the pond to be floated down the canal to the saw mill platform.
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